Kofax TotalAgility

Capture Starter Pack Getting Started Guide Version: 7.8.0

Date: 2020-07-12



© 2020 Kofax. All rights reserved.

Kofax is a trademark of Kofax, Inc., registered in the U.S. and/or other countries. All other trademarks are the property of their respective owners. No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored, or transmitted in any form without the prior written permission of Kofax.

Table of Contents

Preface	5
Introduction to Kofax TotalAgility	5
On-Premise Multi-Tenant	5
Related documentation	5
Training	6
Getting help with Kofax products	7
Chapter 1: Capture Starter Pack overview	8
Chapter 2: Capture Starter Pack import	9
Capture Starter Pack installation folder	9
Import the Capture Starter Pack	9
Chapter 3: Capture Starter Pack components	10
Category	10
Folder type	10
Extraction group	10
Classification group	12
Process	12
Scan/VRS profile	13
Forms	13
Site	14
Logon form	15
Navigation	15
Access forms	16
View the Capture Starter Pack activities	16
Export	17
Process documents	
Customize the components	19
Change the folder type	20
Change the classification group	
Change the extraction group	20
Chapter 4: Capture Starter Pack configuration	
Configure ingestion sources	22
Configure the MFP settings	22
Configure the Mobile settings	23
Configure the Kofax Import Connector connection settings	23

Configure the Kofax Export Connector settings	24
Exception handling	25

Preface

This guide explains how to use Kofax TotalAgility to import and process the Capture Starter Pack.

Introduction to Kofax TotalAgility

Kofax TotalAgility is a Smart Process Application (SPA) platform that transforms and simplifies critical business interactions. Use TotalAgility to design, develop, and deploy continually improving business processes that result in better customer engagement, more effective process execution, and increased business agility.

TotalAgility provides multichannel information capture, business process management and adaptive case management and mobile capabilities in a single, integrated product offering.

TotalAgility supports Business Intelligence (BI) and Analytics, advanced data integration and esignature capabilities through prebuilt integration to the Kofax Insight, RPA, Kofax SignDoc and Kofax Communications Manager products respectively.

On-Premise Multi-Tenant

The On-Premise Multi-Tenant version of TotalAgility, which allows Shared Service Centers (SSCs) and Business Process Outsourcers (BPOs) to offer the software/solutions to their customer base (tenants), includes the following:

- Tenant management system (to create and manage tenants)
- · Live (production) environment
- · Development environment

By leveraging the optional On-Premise Multi-Tenant version of TotalAgility, you can deploy a single instance of the software that serves all tenants, such that each tenant has its own set of data that remains isolated from data that belongs to all other tenants.

Related documentation

The product documentation set for Kofax TotalAgility 7.8.0 is available at the following location.

https://docshield.kofax.com/Portal/Products/KTA/7.8.0-dpm5ap0jk8/KTA.htm

In addition to this guide, the documentation set includes the following items:

- *Kofax TotalAgility Prerequisites Guide*: Provides system requirements for installing TotalAgility, instructions for running the prerequisite utility, and a software checklist for various installation types.
- Kofax TotalAgility Installation Guide: Describes how to install and configure TotalAgility.

- *Kofax TotalAgility Integration Server Installation Guide*: Describes how to install Kofax Integration Server and integrate it with other products.
- *Kofax TotalAgility On-Premise Multi-Tenant Installation Guide*: Describes how to install and configure On- Premise Multi-Tenant system.
- *Kofax TotalAgility Configuration Utility Guide*: Explains how to use the Configuration Utility to update settings across various configuration files for different types of installation and deployment.
- *Kofax TotalAgility Administrator's Guide*: Provides information to the administrator on configuring and maintaining a TotalAgility installation.
- *Kofax TotalAgility Architecture Guide*: Provides an overview of the TotalAgility architecture, covering various deployments for on-premise, on-premise multi-tenancy and Azure environments.
- *Kofax TotalAgility Best Practices Guide*: Describes the best practices you must follow when using TotalAgility to improve performance, cost, maintenance, availability and security.
- Kofax TotalAgility Features Guide: Provides an overview of the TotalAgility features.
- *Kofax TotalAgility Migration Guide*: Provides information on TotalAgility upgrades from different versions and post upgrade configuration.
- *Kofax TotalAgility Help*: Provides details about using TotalAgility to design business jobs and cases, assign resources, create forms, integrate with external applications, and more. Access the help from the TotalAgility application by clicking the Help button.
- *Kofax TotalAgility Workspace Help*: Describes how to use the Workspace to manage activities, jobs, and resources. Access the help from the TotalAgility Workspace by clicking the Help button.
- Kofax TotalAgility On-Premise Multi-Tenant System Help: Describes how to create and manage tenants using the TotalAgility On-Premise Multi-Tenant system.
- *Kofax TotalAgility Web Capture Control Help*: Provides details on using a Web Capture control in creating multi-page documents, creating a new document in a new folder, deleting pages that have been incorrectly scanned, and more; also, describes the buttons available in a Web Capture control toolbar.
- *Kofax Analytics for TotalAgility Product Features Guide*: Provides an overview of the dashboards that help you track data through the workflow, analyze the effectiveness of the processes and resources, and address business problems.
- *Kofax TotalAgility Tables*: Describes the Kofax TotalAgility tables and fields used by Kofax Analytics for TotalAgility.
- *Migration From Kofax Products Guide*: Provides information about migrating TotalAgility files and Kofax Transformation Modules projects to TotalAgility.

Training

Kofax offers both classroom and computer-based training that will help you make the most of your Kofax TotalAgility solution. Visit the Kofax website at www.Kofax.com for complete details about the available training options and schedules.

Getting help with Kofax products

The Kofax Knowledge Base repository contains articles that are updated on a regular basis to keep you informed about Kofax products. We encourage you to use the Knowledge Base to obtain answers to your product questions.

To access the Kofax Knowledge Base, go to the Kofax website and select **Support** on the home page.

Note The Kofax Knowledge Base is optimized for use with Google Chrome, Mozilla Firefox or Microsoft Edge.

The Kofax Knowledge Base provides:

- Powerful search capabilities to help you quickly locate the information you need.
 Type your search terms or phrase into the Search box, and then click the search icon.
- Product information, configuration details and documentation, including release news.
- Scroll through the Kofax Knowledge Base home page to locate a product family. Then click a product family name to view a list of related articles. Please note that some product families require a valid Kofax Portal login to view related articles.
- Access to the Kofax Customer Portal (for eligible customers).
 - Click the Customer Support link at the top of the page, and then click Log in to the Customer Portal.
- Access to the Kofax Partner Portal (for eligible partners).
 Click the Partner Support link at the top of the page, and then click Log in to the Partner Portal.
- Access to Kofax support commitment, lifecycle policies, electronic fulfillment details, and self-service tools.

Scroll to the General Support section, click Support Details, and then select the appropriate tab.

Capture Starter Pack overview

The Capture Starter Pack is a sample package with predefined components you can use to create and process jobs in TotalAgility.

The Capture Starter Pack includes the following components:

- Process map with common capture tasks, such as ingestion, image processing, classification, document review, extraction, validation, verification, and export.
- Process map with error handling built into the process.
- A companion Transformation Designer project with documents already trained.
- Two document types with index fields. These document type use sample documents.
- Classification and extraction group.
- Extraction group includes all field types, including tables.
- · Ingestion points from Thin Client, Kofax Import Connector, MFP, and mobile sources.

These components relate to each other in the following way:

- · The extraction groups describe fields.
- The extraction groups are associated with classification groups, which describe documents.
- The classification group is linked to a process that consists of activities which describe the events of the business workflow.
- The process and its activities are used to create forms that form the base content to be rendered on displays.

Use the Capture Starter Pack to create jobs, such as scanning documents from an MFP or taking pictures of documents from a supported mobile device.

To use the Capture Starter Pack, you have to import it. After importing, some features of the package may require additional configuration.

Once you are comfortable with the process of working with the Capture Starter Pack, you can import images from applications, such as Kofax Capture or Kofax Mobile Capture to process or customize in a TotalAgility environment.

Capture Starter Pack import

This chapter explains how to import the Capture Starter Pack.

Capture Starter Pack installation folder

The Capture Starter Pack is installed alongside Kofax TotalAgility in your installation directory at:

\\TotalAgilityInstall\Sample Processes\Capture Starter Pack

This pack includes the following items:

- Sample Images: This folder includes the images for the English language.
- Sample Images Japanese: This folder includes the images for the Japanese language
- Capture Starter Pack Package Japanese: The zip file for the Japanese language.
- Capture Starter Pack Package: The zip file for the English language.

Import the Capture Starter Pack

- 1. Launch TotalAgility Designer.
- 2. Navigate to Import. The Import page appears.
- 3. Browse to the Capture Starter Pack Package.zip or drag the ZIP file from your machine to the File to import box.

The files in the package are listed on the **Import** page.

4. Click Import.

A message appears to confirm that the import is successful.

Note When importing, if any errors or warnings occur, resolve them before you proceed.

Capture Starter Pack components

This section describes the predefined contents of the package available on importing the Capture Starter Pack into TotalAgility. This package includes:

- Capture Starter Pack category
- Capture Starter Pack folder type
- Capture Starter Pack extraction group
- Capture Starter Pack Classification group
- Capture Starter Pack process
- · Capture Starter Pack Scan/VRS profile
- · Capture Starter Pack forms
- · An Export activity within the process
- · Capture Starter Pack site
- · Capture Starter Pack navigation

Category

To open the Capture Starter Pack category after importing, navigate to **System** and click **Categories**. The Categories page displays **Capture Starter Pack**. The Capture Starter Pack category is used to hold other components, such as processes, forms, classification groups, and extraction groups.

Folder type

To open the Capture Starter Pack folder type, navigate to **Capture** and click **Folders**. In the Folders page, on the **Category** list, select **Capture Starter Pack**. The Capture Starter Pack folder type is displayed. Click the folder type to open. The Capture Starter Pack folder type opens in a new browser tab. This folder type includes the Text type Process field.

Extraction group

To open the Capture Starter Pack extraction group, navigate to **Capture**, and click **Extraction groups**. In the Extraction groups page, on the **Category** list, select **Capture Starter Pack**. The Capture Starter Pack extraction group is displayed in the list. Click the Capture Starter Pack. The extraction group opens in a new browser tab. Expand the Order Forms document type to view the other document types. You can also search for the required document type name.

KOFAX Extraction group - ca	apture	e Starter Pack v11.000		User1
File Design				Close and unlock \vee Release Save
Document type 📴 Field group 🖵 Field 🗸 🗠 🖍				
Find		Group - properties - Capture	Starter Pack	
Capture Starter Pack	0	General		
Capture Starter Pack		Name	Capture Starter Pack	
RootDocumentType	-+	Description		
Base Field Group	-			
CustomerName		Category*	Capture Starter Pack ×	
SourceNumber				
CheckMO				
Titems				
Uuantity				
III Item				
Description				
UnitPrice				
Amount				
🗗 Date				
IBIII				
> Northwest Order Forms				
> Tri-Spectrum Order Forms				

The Capture Starter Pack extraction group contains the following document types:

- Order Forms
- Northwest
- Tri-Spectrum

The **Order Forms** document type includes the **Order Fields** field group, which includes the following fields.

Field	Туре	OCR
CustomerName	Text	RS_MachineAlphanum (RecoStar 5.0)
SourceNumber	Number	Bar Code Locator
CheckMoneyOrder	Boolean	OMR_Manual (OMR)
LineItems	Table	
LineItem - Quantity	Number	FR_HandNum
LineItem - Article Code	Text	FR_HandNum
LineItems - Description	Text	FR_HandAlphanum
LineItems - Unit Price	Number	FR_HandNum
LineItems - Total Price	Number	FR_HandNum
OrderDate	Date	RS_HanNnum (RecoStar 5.0)
CardType	Choice (Possible values: Visa, MasterCard, American Express)	Default OMR for each option.

The Verification configuration determines which fields appear in the Verification activity. The CustomerName, SourceNumber and CheckMO fields require configuration.

Northwest and **Tri-Spectrum**: These document types extend Order Fields field group so that they both have all the **Order Fields** field group's fields. They are trained using the Transformation Designer. The Extraction activity uses the training result to recognize and populate document fields automatically.

Classification group

To open the Capture Starter Pack classification group, navigate to **Capture**, and click **Classification groups**. In the Classification groups page, on the **Category** list, select **Capture Starter Pack**. The Capture Starter Pack classification group is displayed. Click the classification group to open.

The Capture Starter Pack Classification group uses the Capture Starter Pack Extraction group.

Both document types (Northwest Order Forms and Tri-Spectrum Order Forms) in the Capture Starter Pack extraction group are already trained by Transformation Designer. The Classification activity uses the training results to classify documents automatically.

Process

To open the Capture Starter Pack process, Navigate to **Workflow** and click **Business processes**. In the Business processes page, on the **Category** list, select **Capture Starter Pack**. Click the Capture Starter Pack business process. The process opens in a new browser tab.



KOFAX Process - Capture Starter Pack v10.00	Aary.Sumalatha 🛛 🖉
File Design Variables States Milestones Roles Notes Process events Document set	Debug Close and unlock 🗡 Release Save
Q 100% Q Lines Export image Snap to grid Orientation Rearrange process In A	> Process - Capture Starter Pack Name Capture Starter Pack Description Type Business process Capture Starter Pack Capture Starter Pack Support skins Priority York Synchronous Synchronous

This process includes the following capture activities.

- Classification
- Document Review
- Extraction

- Validation
- Verification
- Export
- Rescan

The Validation and Extraction activities in this process use branching rules.

If the activity is completed with rejected documents or pages, the input folder is sent to the Rescan node; otherwise, it is routed to the next node in the normal process flow. The Rescan node is a Scan activity configured for rescan purposes. Rescan is equivalent to Quality control in Kofax Capture.

See the *TotalAgility help* for configuring a branching rule and scan activity.

Scan/VRS profile

To open the Capture Starter Pack Scan/VRS profile, navigate to **Capture** > **Scan/VRS profile** and click **Capture Starter Pack**.

The Capture Starter Pack process, Device create new job and Scan create new job forms use this profile. After scanning, images are processed by VRS.

Forms

To open a form, navigate to **User interface** and click **Forms**. In the Forms page, on the **Category** list, select **Capture Starter Pack**. The Capture Starter Pack includes the following forms.

Name	Туре
Capture Starter Pack_Document Review	Document review
Capture Starter Pack_Rescan	Scan activity (for Kofax Import Connector and Capture Client)
Capture Starter Pack_Scan	Scan create new job (for Kofax Import Connector and Capture Client)
Capture Starter Pack_Validation	Validation
Capture Starter Pack_Verification	Verification
ManualLogon	Logon
Capture Starter Pack_DeviceScan	Device create new job (for MFP and Mobile Devices)

After you import the package, these forms are available in TotalAgility for customization. These generated forms are dynamic, and therefore no fields are displayed at design time.

	orm - Capture Starter Pack_Validation_Validation v3		Luser1 👔
File Design Actions	Form variables		Debug Close and unlock Y Release Save
Q 100% Q 🗠 🔿			
Toolbox	< 100 % Width	> Form - Capture	e Starter Pack_Validation_Validation
General	The web capture UI will appear here	Name	Capture Starter Pack_Validation_Validation
abc Label		Title	Capture Starter Pack_Validation_Validation
[]□ Textbox		Category*	Capture Starter Pack ×
OK Button		Layout	
		Width mode	 Fixed Percentage
		Width	100 % ~ ^
Table		Design height	200px ~ ^
Dropdown list		Responsive form	
📅 Calendar		Alignment	Center
Radio button list		Use viewport	
Tab		Header and Nav	vigation Menus
G Hyperlink		Header form	Default
		Horizontal menu	Default
inage	·	Vertical menu	Default

The Capture Starter Pack_DeviceScan form, which is generated by the TotalAgility user, is used in MFPs and mobile devices. In this form, the fields are displayed both at the design time and runtime. Table fields are not supported.

Due to the asynchronous nature of device scanning, a job is actually created prior to any images being scanned. To prevent a job from processing when the images are not received, a [SCANNED] event precondition is added to the first activity in the process, that is the Classification activity.

As a result, any other file ingestion point must raise the same [SCANNED] event to ensure the process progresses beyond the Classification activity. For example, add a custom form action to the Scan Create New Job form's "OnCreateNewJob" event to raise the [SCANNED] event.

If you do not ingest through a Device Create New Job form, remove the [SCANNED] event precondition, so that the [SCANNED] event is not raised in other ingestion channels.

Site

To open a site, navigate to **User interface** and click **Sites**. In the Sites page, on the **Category** list, select **Capture Starter Pack**. Click the Capture Starter Pack site to open.

The Capture Starter Pack site includes the following properties:

- Category: Capture Starter Pack
- Name: CaptureStarterPack
- Languages: Where you select the Japanese language. Click Add to select the language.

- · Desktop settings, Tablet settings and Phone settings
 - Theme: TotalAgility Workspace
 - Header form: WorkspaceHeader
 - Horizontal navigation: Capture Starter Pack
 - Default form: LogonForm

Use the following URL to access the CaptureStarterPack site.

http://<servername>/totalagility/forms/capturestarterpack/

The browser automatically navigates to:

http://<server name>/totalagility/forms/capturestarterpack/LogonForm.form

Logon form

The default TotalAgility Workspace uses Windows authentication. You can use a manual logon form to give different users the ability to log on.

The Logon form is set as a default form for the Capture Starter Pack site. You can set any form as the default form for the site.

Navigation

To open the navigation, navigate to **User interface** and click **Navigations**. In the Navigations page, on the Category list, select **Capture Starter Pack**. Click the **Capture Starter Pack** navigation to open.

By default, the navigation menu displays the following properties:

- · Name: Capture Starter Pack
- · Category: Capture Starter Pack
- Width: 150
- · Height: 30

The Capture Starter Pack navigation includes the following menu items: Scan, Work Queue and Jobs. Under Menu Items, expand Capture Starter Pack and select the menu item.

Scan: It includes the following properties:

- Type: Menu Item
- Menu Item Name: Scan
- Target: Capture Starter Pack_Scan

Work Queue: It includes the following properties:

- · Type: Menu Item
- Menu Item Name: Work Queue
- Target: GeneralWorkQueue.form

Menu Item	Properties			
Create				
	Type: Menu item			
	Menu Item Name: Create			
	Target: CreateNewJob.form			
	Window: Same window			
Find				
	Type: Menu item			
	Menu Item Name: Find			
	Target: findjobs.form			
	Window: Same window			

Jobs: Expand the Jobs menu to view the Create and Find menu items. They include the following properties:

Access forms

Access the Kofax TotalAgility Workspace, using the following URL:

http://<hostname>/totalagility/forms/capturestarterpack/

Use the Capture Starter Pack Workspace menu to access the Capture Starter Pack Scan and General Work Queue forms to start jobs in Thin Client.

Note The Capture Starter Pack Workspace menu is not available for Kofax Import Connector, Kofax Mobile Capture, or MFPs.

View the Capture Starter Pack activities

To view Capture Starter Pack activities, on the Work Queue page, under Shared Queries, select **Capture Starter Pack**.

KOFAX TotalAgility Workspace					
To Do ▾ Jobs ▾ Resources	s • Administration •				
Work Queue					
+ 🔮 🔋 <	C Refresh 🖌 Edit Query				
My Queries Shared Queries Alerts All Activities All Work Due This Week All Work Due Today Capture Starter Pack Me and My Groups Work Me and My Subordinates Work My Activities (default) My Work My Work Due This Week My Work Due Today	Activity Name Process Prio				

Export

The Capture Starter Pack process in the imported package contains an Export activity. When you use this process to create jobs, jobs are not executed unless you install the Kofax Export Connector for Text.

Install the connector and use the Export Connector - Setup screen to configure the connector for use with the Capture Starter Pack process. See Configure Kofax Export Connector settings.

Note The Export activity is not supported in an Azure environment. When you create a job on a process that has an Export activity, the job suspends with error.

Process documents

Processing a document involves the following procedure.

1. Scan a document: Navigate to the Capture Starter Pack_Scan form.

Note Use this form for the Web file import. When you access the form for the first time on a fresh Kofax TotalAgility installation, you are prompted to install the file import service. Select the file import as a scan source for the next step.

KOFAX TotalA	gility Workspace		★ ♀ ⊘ .	• -
To Do ▾ Jobs ▾ Resources	s - Administration -			
🚗 🕨 🍽 File Import 🛛 Prof	ile: Capture Starter F 🔻		R; R; R; B; B; B; B; B; I < > > F	0
Navigator 🔹 🔅	Fields	0	Page 1 of 4	۵ 🗘
Document Type:	Document Folder	Process	□□□<<< <p>□□<</p> □□ <	
Select a document type	Current Error	tarter Pack	Uniform Residential Loan Application The specified in barry bar	
Thumbnails	L	V		- ¢
Document: (4)				
Ready		Pages Scanned: 4 Auto Deleted:	0 Pages in Activity: 4 Folder: 1 of 1 Document: 1 of 1 Page: 1 of 4 Invalid Docum	ents: 0

- 2. The images in the document are automatically classified using the Classification activity.
- **3.** Manually review the classification results using the Review activity. If any document, folder, or field in the activity is invalid, correct it.
- 4. Documents and folder fields are automatically recognized using the Extraction activity.
- 5. Manually validate the field values using the Validation activity.

6. Verify the document data before it is exported using the Verification activity. In the sample, only three fields are configured for verification: CustomerName, SourceNumber and CheckMO.

KOFAX TotalA	gility Workspace		↑ ♀ ♀
To Do ▼ Jobs ▼ Resources	• Administration •		
🚗 🕨 🍽 File Import 🛛 Prof	ile: Capture Starter F 💌 📫 📭 🛤 📭 📭 📭 限	R I	⊪, ₽, ₽, ₽, ₽, ₽, ₽, ₽, ₽, ₽, ₽, ₽, ₽, ₽,
Navigator 🔹 🌣	Fields	۰	Page 1 of 3
Document Type:	Document Folder Process		ଢା ଢା ସ ସ ଅ ↔ ‡ େ ୦ ୯ ୪ ଅ ଅ ଅ
Tri-Spectrum Order Forms	CustomerNam Bob Thompson ¥ e SourceNumber 0 CheckMO 🗹	*	Uniform Residential Loan Application Uniform Residential Control Application Uniform Uniform Uniform Residential Control Application Uniform U
	Items		Borrower Co-Borrower L TYPE OF MORTGAGE AND TERMS OF LOAN
	Quantity Item Descri Unit Pr Amount	1	Mortgage VA (X) Conventional Other (explain) Agency Case Number Lender Case Number Applied for: PHA USD/Nural 1309002564 Housing Service
			1900000 1000000 10000000 100000000
	Current Error	•	Complete this for effective or constructing-permanent has. Instantial
Thumbnails	D		
Ready	Pages Scanned: 4 Auto Delet	ted: (l: 0 Pages in Activity: 3 Folder: 1 of 1 Document: 1 of 1 Page: 1 of 3 Invalid Documents

- 7. Using the Export activity, documents are exported to the following folder:
 - c:\Export\NorthWest
 - c:\Export\Tri-spectrum

Each folder includes Export.txt, which lists the document and folder fields.

rganize 👻 Include in li	brary Share with New folder				
🔆 Favorites	Name ~	Date modified	Туре	Size	
E Desktop	A 00000001	8/3/2015 4:48 PM	TIFF image	43 KB	
〕 Downloads	00000002	8/3/2015 4:48 PM	TIFF image	30 KB	
Recent Places	20000003	8/3/2015 4:48 PM	TIFF image	32 KB	
	3 00000004	8/3/2015 4:49 PM	TIFF image	33 KB	
Libraries	00000005	8/3/2015 4:49 PM	TIFF image	44 KB	
Documents Music	20000006	8/3/2015 5:04 PM	TIFF image	43 KB	
Pictures	30000007	8/3/2015 5:16 PM	TIFF image	43 KB	
Videos	0000008	8/4/2015 2:22 PM	TIFF image	32 KB	
	Export	8/4/2015 2:22 PM	Text Document	3 KB	
Computer					

Customize the components

You can customize the Capture Starter Pack process by changing the classification group, extraction group and folder types in the Capture Starter Package, as needed.

For information on folder type, extraction group and classification group, see the Kofax TotalAgility help.

Change the folder type

A folder is assigned to the process variables and initialized when a new job is created. To use a different folder type, replace the folder variable with a different folder.

- 1. Open the Capture Starter Pack process.
- 2. On the modeling bar, click Variables and then click the Folder variable. The Edit variable dialog box is displayed.
- 3. On the Value list, delete the Capture Starter Pack variable and select another folder variable.

KOFAX Process -	Capture Starter Pacl	< v12.00*	
File Design Variables States	Milestones Roles	Notes Process events	Document set
Variables			
New Initialization order			
Name	ID		
DocumentExported	DOCUMENTEXPORTE	Edit variable	
DocumentNotExported	DOCUMENTNOTEXPO	Name*	Folder
ExportSuccess	EXPORTSUCCESS	ID	FOLDER
Folder	FOLDER	Turne	ir Pa
		Type	Folder
		Initialization	
		Value	MFP Starter Pack ×
			Cancel Update

4. Click Update

Change the classification group

- 1. Navigate to Workflow and open the Capture Starter Pack process.
- In the properties panel of the process, click the Capture tab.
 The Capture Starter Pack group appears by default on the Classification group list.
- **3.** On the **Classification Group** list, delete the default Capture Starter Pack and select a different classification group.
- 4. Click Save.

Change the extraction group

An extraction group is linked to a classification group, which in turn is associated with a process. You can change the extraction group associated with the Capture Starter Pack process through the classification group.

- 1. Navigate to Capture and click Classification groups. The Classification Group page appears.
- 2. On the Category list, click Capture Starter Pack.

- **3.** Click the Capture Starter Pack classification group. The **Edit classification group** dialog box is displayed.
- **4.** In the **Extraction groups** box, delete the Capture Starter Pack group that appears by default, and add a different extraction group.
- 5. Click Save.

Capture Starter Pack configuration

When you import the Capture Starter Pack, the default settings enable you to process the included documents. If you wish to process your own documents, some changes to the configuration may be required.

See also:

- Configure ingestion sources
- · Configure the Kofax Export Connector settings

Configure ingestion sources

Ingestion sources include input sources, such as Thin Client, MFP, Mobile, and Kofax Import Connector. Thin Client uses the forms embedded in the package; other ingestion sources require manual configuration after you import the package. For manual configuration details, see:

- Configure MFP settings
- Configure Mobile settings
- Configure Kofax Import Connector settings

Configure the MFP settings

You must download MFP client software to configure TotalAgility for use with MFPs.

Download MFP Client software

Follow the instructions for downloading the MFP client software, such as MFP Emulator.

- Launch TotalAgility Designer and navigate to System > System Settings > Capture > Devices. The Devices page appears.
- 2. Click Download.
- **3.** To download MFP Client Software, on the **Manufacturer** list, select the manufacturer that corresponds to your MFP type, such as **MFP Emulator**.
- 4. Click 🛇

A .zip file containing installation instructions in the PDF format is downloaded.

 Run and configure the MFP Emulator as described in the guide. The MFP Emulator is installed.

MFP Emulator

- **1.** Start the MFP Emulator.
- 2. On the **Main Menu** for the MFP Emulator, select the Capture Starter Pack_DeviceScan form. The Index Fields for the Capture Starter Pack_Device Scan dialog box appears.
- 3. Navigate to Settings > Devices > Device Profiles and edit the Default Profile.
- 4. On the Associated Forms tab, associate the Device form for the process into the Associated column.
- 5. Click Save.

Configure the Mobile settings

Kofax Mobile Capture is available for Android and iOS devices. After installing Kofax Mobile Capture on a mobile device, you can configure it for use with the Capture Starter Pack in TotalAgility.

Note The jobs initiated from the mobile devices do not perform image processing or separation on the server. The Imaging volume will be decremented for all pages originating from a mobile device using a Device Create New Job form.

- 1. Log on to Kofax Mobile Capture.
- On the Main Menu, select Capture Starter Pack_DeviceScan.
 The fields associated with your form selection appear on the Field Details screen.

Configure the Kofax Import Connector connection settings

You can use the Kofax Import Connector to import documents into TotalAgility.

Note You can also use Email as an import source to import documents from an inbox.

- 1. Install and configure the Kofax Import Connector.
- 2. On the Main Menu, select Capture Starter Pack_DeviceScan.
- Launch TotalAgility Designer, and navigate to Integration > Import settings. The Import settings page appears.
- 4. Click New.

The New import connection dialog box is displayed.

- 5. Enter a Name for the import connection as Capture Starter Pack.
- 6. By default, the import connection is Active.
- 7. Enter the Message connector URL for the new import connection.
- 8. Click + for Import sources and add the File import source.
- **9.** Configure the File Import source.
- **10.** Save the changes.

Configure the Kofax Export Connector settings

For jobs created using the Capture Starter Pack process to execute, you must install the Kofax Export Connector for Text 1.0 manually and then configure the connector with the Capture Starter Pack process. Refer to the Kofax Export Connector help.

You can download the Kofax Export Connector for Text 1.0 from the KofaxTotalAgility ZIP available on a per language basis, such as Kofax TotalAgility7.8.0_EN.zip and Kofax TotalAgility7.8.0_DE.zip from the Kofax Fulfillment Site.

Once the Export Connector is installed, you can access it through the Start menu.

- 1. On the Start menu, click Kofax TotalAgility > Kofax Export Connector .
- 2. In the Export Connector Configuration screen, click Setup.
- 3. In the Export Connectors Setup screen, on the Select Category list, select Capture Starter Pack.

Kofax TotalAgility (Version 7.6.0.0.0.4	51) - Export Connector Configuration	×
Kofax	Export Connectors - Setup	
TotalAgility	Select Category ALL Available Document Types: RootDocumentType NorthwestOrder Forms Tri-Spectrum Order Forms Add << Ren Connee	Select Process Capture Starter Pack Assigned Document Types: Northwest Order Forms Tri-Spectrum Order Forms >> nove ctors

- **4.** On the **Select Process** list, select **Capture Starter Pack**. The document types from the selected process appear in the **Available Document Types** box.
- **5.** From the **Available Document Types**, select Tri-Spectrum and NorthWest and click **Add**. The selected document types appears in the **Assigned Document Types** box.
- 6. From the Assigned Document Types box, select the document type for which to assign the connector and click Connectors.

The Export Connectors - < Document type name> window appears.

7. From the **Available Export Connectors** box, select the connectors to assign to the document type and click **Add**.

The Kofax Export Connector for <Connector Name> Setup window appears with a predefined user interface. This step assigns the selected export connector to the document type and adds the selected connector to the **Assigned Export Connectors** box.

- Use ↑ and ↓ to change the sequence of export connectors. The export connectors are executed in the sequence specified.
- **9.** Map the Document Index Fields to document fields of the document and Kofax Capture Values to system fields of the document.
- **10.** Configure other details, as needed.

Note If you use an Export activity in your process, at runtime, documents are converted into images and exported to a folder in the format specified.

11. Click Save.

Exception handling

The system raises exceptions within running a capture process. For example, an exception is raised if there is an error when processing the documents or pages using a capture activity.

You can handle an exception by routing the documents to an alternate exceptional path with activities that can fix the problem and then restart the job from the beginning. For example, a scanning activity that rescans the image if there is an error in the image. All the capture activities support alternative execution paths. The path is chosen at runtime according to the branching rules defined for the activity at design time.

When rescanning, the scan activity automatically navigates to the next rejected document or page and the activity is completed only when there are no rejected documents or pages.

When processing the automatic capture activities, the system does the following:

- · Skips any failed document or page and completes processing of all non-error documents and pages.
- Rejects the failed document or page and displays the rejection reason.
- Skips any document or page if it has already been processed before, and only processes new documents and pages.

A capture process has input variable of type Folder or Document. Use the HasRejections and RejectedByFailure properties in branching rules for the activity to send the batch through exception path (branch) when the batch contains rejections.

Example: Branching rules

Branching rules	*	
Default path *	DocReview	•
Use exclusive O	R (XOR)	
DocReview	Right-click on rule editor to select item	
Verification	[Folder.HasRejections] = FALSE	Validate
		Cancel OK